
 
 

 
West Northamptonshire Council 

www.westnorthants.gov.uk  

South Northamptonshire Local Area 
Planning Committee 

A meeting of the South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning 
Committee will be held at the The Forum, Moat Lane, Towcester, NN12 

6AD on Thursday 5 August 2021 at 2.15 pm 
 

 

Agenda 
  

1.  Apologies for Absence and Appointment of Substitute Members  

 

2.  Declarations of Interest  

Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which they 
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 

 

3.  Minutes (Pages 5 - 16) 

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 3 June 2021. 

 

4.  Chairman's Announcements  

To receive communications from the Chairman. 

 

Planning Applications 

5.  46-48 High Street, Harpole, Northamptonshire, NN7 4BS (Pages 19 - 42) 

 

6.  35 John Clare Close, Brackley, NN13 5GG (Pages 43 - 52) 

 

7.  Urgent Business  

The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any items of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



   

8.  Exclusion of Press and Public  

In respect of the following items the Chair may move the resolution set out below, on 
the grounds that if the public were present it would be likely that exempt information 
(information regarded as private for the purposes of the Local Government Act 1972) 
would be disclosed to them: The Committee is requested to resolve: “That under 
Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that if the public were 
present it would be likely that exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Act of the descriptions against each item would be disclosed to them” 

 

 
 

Catherine Whitehead 
Proper Officer 
28 July 2021 
 
 

South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee Members: 

Councillor Stephen Clarke (Chair) 

 

Councillor Ken Pritchard (Vice-Chair) 

 

Councillor Anthony S. Bagot-Webb Councillor Dermot Bambridge 

Councillor William Barter Councillor Maggie Clubley 

Councillor Karen Cooper Councillor Alison Eastwood 

Councillor Lisa Samiotis  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

Information about this Agenda 

 
Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence and the appointment of substitute Members should be notified to 
democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk prior to the start of the meeting.  
 
 
Declarations of Interest 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the start 
of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item 
 
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare that fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
If a continuous fire alarm sounds you must evacuate the building via the nearest available 
fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the assembly area as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 
 
Access to Meetings 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
 
Mobile Phones 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
If you have any queries about this agenda please contact James Edmunds, Democratic 
Services via the following:  
 
Email: democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Or by writing to:  
 
West Northamptonshire Council 
One Angel Square 
Angel Street 
Northampton 
NN1 1ED 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee 
held at The Forum, Moat Lane, Towcester, NN12 6AD on Thursday 3 June 2021 at 
2.15 pm. 
 
Present Councillor Stephen Clarke (Chair) 

Councillor Ken Pritchard (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillor Anthony S. Bagot-Webb 

Councillor Dermot Bambridge 
Councillor William Barter 
Councillor Karen Cooper 
Councillor Alison Eastwood 
Councillor Louisa Fowler 
Councillor Lisa Samiotis 

  

Officers Paul Seckington, Interim Head of Development Management, 
Enforcement and Land Charges 
Suzanne Taylor, Principal Planning Officer for S/2021/0380/MAF 
Jamie Parsons, Planning Solicitor 
Richard Woods, Democratic Services Officer 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 
 

3. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Interim Committee held on 15 April 2021 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

4. Chairman's Announcements  
 
The Chairman warmly welcomed all Members and Officers to the inaugural meeting 
of the South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee.  
 
In response to questions from Members, the Chairman provided clarification on the 
process that would be followed in the future should a Parish Council object to a 
planning application, namely, that an objection received from a Parish Council is not 
an automatic reason in itself for a planning application to be brought before the 
Committee for consideration.  
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

5. Land East of Northampton Road, Brackley  
 
The Committee considered application S/2021/0380/MAF comprising of an 
employment development of 7 units (2 buildings) to be used for  Class E(g)(iii) (light 
industrial processes), B2 (general industrial) and B8 (storage and distribution) 
floorspace, and retail development of 1 unit for Class E (a) (display or retail sale of 
goods, other than hot food) and (b) (sale of food and drink for consumption (mostly) 
on the premises) floorspace at land east of Northampton Road, Brackley for 
Tungsten Brackley LTD.  
 
Marie Stacey, agent for the applicant, addressed the Committee in support of the 
application.  
 
In reaching its decision, the Committee considered the officer’s report and 
presentation, the address of the public speaker, and the written update. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That authority be delegated to the Assistant Director – Growth, Climate and 

Regeneration to grant permission for application S/2021/0380/MAF subject to: 
 

1) The satisfactory resolution of objections from the Local Highways Authority;  
 

2) The completion of a Planning Obligation under Section 106 of the Town and 
County Planning Act 1990, as substituted by the Planning and Compensation 
Act 1991, to secure the following (and any amendments as deemed 
necessary):  
 

a. Payment of a financial contribution towards SNC Job Club of £250 per 
full time vacancy and £100 part time vacancy toward the SNC Job Club 
service (index linked); 

b. Payment of a financial contribution towards Brackley Town Fund – TBC 
and amount to be agreed (index linked); 

c. Payment of a financial contribution towards bus services – TBC and 
amount to be agreed (index linked); 

d. Provision of a footpath/cycle link to Northampton Road; 
e. Payment of the Council’s Monitoring Costs of up to £5000 

 
3) The following conditions (and any amendments to those conditions as deemed 

necessary): 
 

CONDITIONS 
 

Time Limit 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 
  

Page 6



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

 Reason : To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

  
 Compliance with Plans 
 
2. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete 

accordance with the approved plans and details unless a non-material or minor 
material amendment is approved by the Local Planning Authority under the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015 (as amended).  The approved plans and details are: 

  
 Proposed Site Plan Dwg No: 2523 P402 Rev E dated 29 April 2021; 
 Proposed Surface Treatments Site Plan Dwg: 2523 P403 Rev C dated 29 April 

2021; 
 Proposed Boundary Treatments Site Plan Dwg: 2523 P404 Rev C dated 29 

April 2021; 
 Proposed Cycle, Bollards and Bins Site Plan Dwg No: 2523 P406 Rev C dated 

29 April 2021; 
 Fire hydrant location plan Dwg No: 2523 PSK03 Rev A dated 29 April 2021; 
 Soft landscaping plan Dwg: KL-477-001 Rev P2 dated 30 April 2021; 
 Unit 1 Building Information Dwg No: 2523 P1-100 Rev A dated 28 January 

2021; 
 Unit 2 Building Information Dwg No: 2523 P2-100 dated December 2021; 
 Costa Building Information Dwg No: 2523 P3-100 Rev A dated 09 February 

2021; 
 Roof Plans Dwg No: 2523 P4-100 dated January 2021; 
 Street Lighting Layout Dwg No: LL1241-001 Rev A dated 03 February 2021; 
 Street Lighting Report ref: LL1241/001 Rev A dated 03 February 2021; 
 Street Lighting Risk Assessment Report ref: LL1241-001 Rev A dated 04 

February 2021; 
 Outdoor Lighting Report ref: LL1241-001 dated 03 February 2021; 
 Air Quality Assessment Report ref: REP-1012730-AQ-5A-CS-20210209-AQA-

Northampton Road Brackley-Rev01 dated 09 February 2021;  
 Transport Statement by ADC Infrastructure ref: ADC2581-RP-A V2 dated 04 

February 2021; 
 Technical Note Addressing Local Highway Authority Comments by ADC 

Infrastructure Ltd ref: ADC2581-RP-B Ver 4 dated 10 May 2021; 
 Economic Benefits Statement by Pegasus Group ref: P20-2998/R001v2 dated 

February 2021; 
 Ecological Impact Assessment by Ramm Sanderson Ref: RSE_4515_01_V2 

dated February 2021; 
 Tree Survey: Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Method Statement and Tree 

Protection Plan by Ramm Sanderson ref: RSE_4515_R2_V2_ARB dated 
February 2021; 

 Heritage Statement by Pegasus Group ref: P20-2998 dated 08 February 2021; 
 Ecological 
 Report on the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy by PRP ref: 

63168 dated 29 January 2021; 
 Acoustics Report by Hoare Lea Rev 1 dated 10 February 2021; 

Page 7



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

 Report on Ground Investigation by Applied Geology ref: AG1631-12-M85 Issue 
1 dated May 2012; 

 Sustainability Statements and BREEAM Pre-Assessments for Units 1A-1D & 
2A-C and Costa Coffee Retail Unit both by Melin ref: 1938B dated 01 February 
2021. 

    
 Reason : To clarify the permission and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
 Restriction of B2 Floorspace 
 
3. No more than 50% of the floorspace within the buildings hereby approved shall 

be utilised for purposes falling within Class B2 as specified in the Schedule to 
the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (amended). 

  
 Reason : To ensure adequate on-site parking is provided in the interests of 

highway safety and to accord with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire 
Local Plan. 

 
 CONDITIONS REQUIRING LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY WRITTEN 

APPROVAL OR TO BE COMPLIED WITH BEFORE ANY DEVELOPMENT 
COMMENCES  

 
 Pedestrian and Cycle Link to Northampton Road 
 
4. No development shall take place until details of a pedestrian and cycle link into 

the site from the Northampton Road have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The pedestrian/cycle link shall be 
implemented in accordance with the agreed details prior to the first use or 
occupation of the development. 

  
 Reason :  In the interests of promoting sustainable transport modes in 

accordance with Government advice in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
 Protection of Trees 
 
5. No development shall take place until the existing tree(s) to be retained along 

the north-western boundary have been protected in the following manner unless 
otherwise previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority;   

 
 a) Protective barriers shall be erected around the tree(s) to a distance not less 

than a radius of 12 times the trunk diameter when measured at 1.5m above 
natural ground level (on the highest side) for single stemmed trees and for 
multi-stemmed trees 10 times the trunk diameter just above the root flare. 

 
 b )The barriers shall comply with the specification set out in British Standard 

BS5837:2012 ‘Trees in Relation to Construction – Recommendations’ that is 
steel mesh panels at least 2.3m tall securely fixed to a scaffold pole framework 
with the uprights driven into the ground a minimum of 0.6m depth and braced 

Page 8



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

with additional scaffold poles between the barrier and the tree[s] at a minimum 
spacing of 3m.  

  
 c)The barriers shall be erected before any equipment, machinery or materials 

are brought onto the site for the purposes of development [and / or demolition] 
and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus material has 
been removed from the site.   

 
 d) Nothing shall be stored or placed within the areas protected by the barriers 

erected in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those 
areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavations be made, without the 
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason : To ensure the continued health of retained trees/hedges and to 

ensure that they are not adversely affected by the construction works, in the 
interests of the visual amenity of the area, to ensure the integration of the 
development into the existing landscape and to comply with Policies SS2 and 
NE5 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan and Government guidance 
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is 
required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the 
acceptability of the scheme. 

 
 Construction Method Statement (CEMP) 
 
6. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition until a 

Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The statement shall provide for at a minimum: 

 
 a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
 b) The routeing of HGVs to and from the site; 
 c) Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 

d) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
e) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 

displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
f) Wheel washing facilities including type of operation (automated, water 

recycling etc) and road sweeping; 
g) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
h) A scheme for recycling/ disposing of waste resulting from demolition 

and construction works;  
i)  Delivery, demolition and construction working hours (see Informative 2 

below for more advice); 
  
 The approved Construction Method Statement shall be adhered to throughout 

the construction period for the development.  
  
 Reason : To ensure the environment and amenities of neighbours are protected 

during construction in accordance with Policy SS2 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan and Government guidance contained within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to 

Page 9



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of 
the scheme. 

 
 Finished Floor Levels 
 
7. No development shall take place until details of all finished floor levels in 

relation to existing and proposed site levels and to the adjacent buildings have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved levels. 

  
 Reason : In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance 

with advice within Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This 
information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is 
fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme. 

 
 Surface Water Management Strategy 
 
8. No drainage works shall commence until a surface water management strategy 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
No hard-standing areas to be constructed until the works have been carried out 
in accordance with the surface water strategy so approved unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason : To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding 

and to accord with Sections 14 and 15 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the 
development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme. 

 
 CONDITIONS REQUIRING LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY WRITTEN 

APPROVAL OR TO BE COMPLIED WITH BY DEVELOPER BEFORE 
SPECIFIC CONSTRUCTION WORKS TAKE PLACE 

 
 Unexpected Contamination 
 
9. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 

present at the site, no further development shall be carried out until full details 
of a remediation strategy detailing how the unsuspected contamination shall be 
dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter the remediation strategy shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is identified and 

adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment 
and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Policy 
SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan, Policy BN9 of the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
 Waste Bins 

Page 10



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

 
10. Prior to the first use of the Costa Coffee Drive-Thru Unit hereby approved, 

suitably located waste bins shall be provided outside the premises and retained 
for public use in accordance with details to be firstly submitted to an approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  
 Reason: In order that proper arrangements are made for the disposal of waste, 

and to ensure the creation of a satisfactory environment free from intrusive 
levels of litter in accordance with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire 
Local Plan and Government guidance contained within the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
 BREEAM 
 
11. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to at least a BREEAM 

Very Good standard in accordance with the approved Sustainability Statements 
and BREEAM Pre-Assessments for Units 1A-1D & 2A-C and Costa Coffee 
Retail Unit both by Melin ref: 1938B dated 01 February 2021.   

  
 Reason : To ensure energy and resource efficiency practices are incorporated 

into the development in accordance with the Government's aim to achieve 
sustainable development as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 CONDITIONS REQUIRING LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY WRITTEN 

APPROVAL OR TO BE COMPLIED WITH BY DEVELOPER BEFORE 
OCCUPATION  

 
 Landscape Maintenance 
 
12. Notwithstanding the approved soft landscaping plan (Dwg: KL-477-001 Rev P2 

dated 30 April 2021) a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum 
period of 15 years shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to occupation of the development. The schedule shall 
include details of the arrangements for its implementation. Development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved schedule unless otherwise 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that the agreed landscaping scheme is maintained over a 

reasonable period that will permit its establishment in the interests of visual 
amenity and to accord with Policies SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local 
Plan Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

 
 Parking, Turning and Loading Facilities 
 
13. The proposed access and parking, turning, loading and unloading facilities shall 

be provided in accordance with the approved plans before first use or 
occupation of any of the development hereby permitted. The access, parking, 
turning, loading and unloading facilities shall thereafter be retained for use in 
connection with the development for those purposes only. 

Page 11



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

  
 Reason : In the interests of highway safety, to ensure the provision of adequate 

off-street car parking and turning/loading/unloading to comply with Policy SS2 of 
the South Northamptonshire Local Plan and Government guidance in Section 
12 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
 Covered Cycle Parking 
 
14. Prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby permitted, 

covered cycle parking facilities shall be provided on the site in accordance with 
the approved Proposed Cycle, Bollards and Bins Site Plan Dwg No: 2523 P406 
Rev C dated 29 April 2021.  The covered cycle parking facilities so provided 
shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained for the parking of 
cycles in connection with the development. 

  
 Reason :  In the interests of promoting sustainable transport modes in 

accordance with Government advice in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
 Green Travel Plan 
 
15. A Green Travel Plan prepared in accordance with the Department of 

Transport’s Best Practice Guidance Note "Using the Planning Process to 
Secure Travel Plans" (and its subsequent amendments) shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first use or 
occupation of the development hereby permitted.  The approved Green Travel 
Plan shall thereafter be implemented and operated in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 Reason : In the interests of sustainability and to ensure a satisfactory form of 

development, in accordance with Government advice in the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
 Surface Water Management/Maintenance 
 
16. No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until details of the 

implementation, maintenance and management of the sustainable drainage 
scheme are submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in 
accordance with the approved details.  Those details shall include: 

  
 ii) a timetable for its implementation, and  
 ii) a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development 

which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public body or 
statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the 
sustainable drainage scheme throughout its lifetime. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that the development/site is served by sustainable 

arrangements for the disposal of surface water, to comply with Policy SS2 of the 
South Northamptonshire Local Plan, Policy BN7 of the West Northamptonshire 

Page 12



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

Joint Core Strategy and Government advice in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
Ecological Enhancements 

 
17. Prior to the occupation of any building the native planting and bat and bird 

nesting boxes shall be installed on the site in accordance with the 
recommendations of Section 7, page 26 of the approved Ecological Impact 
Assessment by Ramm Sanderson Ref: RSE_4515_01_V2 dated February 
2021.  

  
 Reason : To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any 

loss or damage in accordance with Policy BN2 of the West Northamptonshire 
Joint Core Strategy and Government guidance contained within Section 15 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 Electric Vehicle Charging Points 
 
18. No unit hereby permitted shall be occupied until it has been provided with 

electric vehicle charging equipment of AC Level 2 (or equipment providing for 
no lesser standard of efficiency) for at least one vehicle to serve that unit.  No 
less than 8 No. electric vehicle charging points must be provided in total across 
the development. 

  
 Reason : To comply with Policy S10 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 

Strategy and Policy INF4 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan Part 2, and 
to maximise opportunities for sustainable transport modes in accordance with 
paragraph 110(e) of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 HGV/Delivery Management Plan 
 
19. Prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby permitted an 

HGV/Delivery Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The submitted Management Plan shall have 
regard to the Transport for London Quiet Deliveries Demonstration Scheme 
dated May 2011 and shall include the 'noisiest' aspects of the servicing area in 
terms of loudness, duration, and mitigation measures to be employed to 
minimise the noise during the operation of the businesses.  The development 
shall be operated in accordance with the approved Management Plan at all 
times thereafter. 

  
 Reason : To ensure the creation of a satisfactory environment free from 

intrusive levels of noise and to comply with advice in policy 180 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Noise Policy Statement for England, The 
Governments Planning Practice Guidance, and Policy SS2(f) of the Local Plan. 

 
20. CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH AT ALL TIMES  
 
 Retention of Boundary Hedge 
 

Page 13



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

21. The existing hedge(s) along the north-western boundary of the site shall be 
retained at a minimum height of not less than two metres and any trees or 
plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within 
15 years from the completion of the development shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and the same species, unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

  
 Reason : To provide an effective and attractive screen for the development in 

the interests of visual amenity and to accord with Policies SS2 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan.   

  
 Noise Limitation 
 
22. The cumulative LAeq,1hour noise level arising from all activities within the 

development shall be limited to a level that does not exceed 55dB, between the 
hours of 07:00 and 23:00 hours and a level that does not exceed 50dB, 
between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 at any off site noise-sensitive receptor. 
The LAFMax arising from any site operations shall not exceed 60dB at a 
location 1 metre from the façade of any off-site noise sensitive receptor 
between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00.  

  
 Reason: To ensure the creation of a satisfactory environment free from intrusive 

levels of noise and to comply with advice in policy 180 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Noise Policy Statement for England, The Governments 
Planning Practice Guidance, and Policy SS2(f) of the Local Plan. 

  
 Plant Noise 
 
23. The cumulative LAeq,1hour noise level arising from plant noise within the 

development shall be limited to a level that does not exceed 37dB, between the 
hours of 07:00 and 23:00 hours and a level that does not exceed 33dB, 
between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 at any off site noise-sensitive receptor in 
accordance with section 7.3 (page 14-15) of the approved Acoustics Report by 
Hoare Lea Rev 1 dated 10 February 2021.  

  
 Reason: To ensure the creation of a satisfactory environment free from intrusive 

levels of noise and to comply with advice in policy 180 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Noise Policy Statement for England, The Governments 
Planning Practice Guidance, and Policy SS2(f) of the Local Plan. 

  
 No Outdoor Storage 
 
24. No goods or materials shall be stored, repaired, operated or displayed outside 

the buildings unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  
 Reason : In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance 

with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan. 
 
 Restriction to Specified Use Classes 

Page 14



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

 
25. The employment units hereby permitted shall be used only for 

employment/industrial uses falling within Use Classes E (g) (iii), B2 and B8 and 
for no other purpose whatsoever, including any other purpose in Class E (g) (i) 
OR (ii) of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 
1987 (as amended) or in any provision equivalent to that class in any statutory 
instrument revoking, amending or re-enacting that order. 

  
 Reason : To ensure adequate on-site parking is provided in the interests of 

highway safety and to accord with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire 
Local Plan.  

 
 Extensions 
 
26. Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 7, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that order) the approved buildings shall not 
be extended without the prior planning permission of the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  
 Reason : To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain planning control over 

the development of this site in order to safeguard the amenities of the area and 
to sustain a satisfactory overall level of parking provision and servicing on the 
site in accordance with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan. 

 
 Mezzanines 
 
27. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 55 (2A) of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 49 of the 2004 Act), Part 10 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015 (as amended) and Part 7, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as 
amended), no internal operations increasing the floor space available within the 
building hereby permitted shall be carried out without the prior planning 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
Reason : To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain planning control over 
the provision of additional floorspace in order to maintain a satisfactory layout 
and sustain an adequate overall level of parking provision and servicing on the 
site in accordance with SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan and 
Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
(2) That, in the event that the Planning Committee refuses to grant planning 

permission, authority be delegated to the Assistant Director – Growth, Climate 
and Regeneration to agree the content of a Section 106 Agreement in the event 
that an appeal is received.  

 
(3) That it be further resolved that, as the statutory determination period for this 

application expires on 10 June 2021, if the Section 106 Agreement/Undertaking is 

Page 15



South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee - 3 June 2021 
 

not completed and/or the access matters have not been resolved to the 
satisfaction of the Assistant Director – Growth, Climate and Regeneration and the 
permission is not able to be issued by this date and no extension of time has been 
agreed by the parties, it is further recommended that authority be delegated to the 
Assistant Director – Growth, Climate and Regeneration to refuse the application 
for the following reason (and any amendments as deemed necessary):  

 
1. In the absence of a satisfactory unilateral undertaking or any other form of 

Section 106 legal agreement, the Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that 
the proposed development provides for appropriate infrastructure required as 
a result of the development and necessary to make the impacts of the 
development acceptable in planning terms, to the detriment of both existing 
and proposed residents and contrary to the Development Plan and SNC’s 
Developer Contributions SPD. 

 
 

6. Urgent Business  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.03 pm 
 
 

 Chairman:   

  
 

 

 Date:  

Page 16



West Northamptonshire Council 
South Northamptonshire Local Area Planning Committee 

Thursday 5 August 2021 

 

Agenda 
Item  

 

Ward Application 
Number 

Location Recommendation Officer 

5 Bugbrooke 

 

 

WNS/2021/0209/FUL 46-48 High 
Street, Harpole, 
NN7 4BS 

Grant Permission*  Samuel Dix 

6 Brackley 

 

 

WNS/2021/0724/FUL 35 John Clare 
Close, Brackley, 
NN13 5GG 

Grant Permission*  Hannah 
Hayward 

 

*Subject to conditions 

Page 17

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number:

Parish:

Town\Village:

Site Area:  

Grid Location:

Map Scale: 1:1250

58

Forge

2

(PH)

2

7

56

2

LA

LB

97

27

43a

14

27

53

87

3

46

7

47

49

TCB

Swan Stables

65

33

43

15

23

HIGH STREET

O
R

C
H

AR
D

 W
AY

1

68

8

41

Bull Inn

11

The New

51

Baptist Church

STR
EET

PAR
K LAN

E

DUCK LANE

76.8m

78.6m

8

38

45

9

47a

31

4

44

1

52

47b

40

42

93

64

14

6

Stoney Nook

75

95

DUCK

3

39

Harpole

H
IG

H

74.4m74.4m

Harpole

0.1680 Ha

SP 69102 60688

WNS/2021/0209/FUL

Harpole PC

©  C rown  Copyrigh t. A ll righ ts  and  da tabase  righ ts  reserved . W est Northamp tonsh ire  Counc il  100063706   2021

Listed BuildingsSite

Conservation Area

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number:

Parish:

WNS/2021/0209/FUL

Harpole PC

Map Scale: 1:1250

Date Flown: 'Latest available'

©  Copyrigh t B luesky W orld  In terna tiona l L td  2021

Site
Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: WNS/2021/0209/FUL 
 

Location:  46-48 High Street, Harpole, Northamptonshire, NN7 4BS 
 

Proposal: Proposed conversion of the Bull Public House including demolition of 

single storey side extension to form a residential dwelling. Development 
of pub car park to provide two detached houses and associated 
garages/parking and amenities space. 

 

 

Applicant:   Mr Terry O'Sullivan    
 
Agent:   None            
 

Case Officer:  Samuel Dix  
 

 

Ward:    Bugbrooke  
     

 
Reason for Referral:  Called-in by Cllr. Adam Brown 
 
Committee Date:  05/08/2021   
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 
 
Proposal  
 
The proposed development comprises the change-of-use of The Bull public house in Harpole 
to a dwellinghouse and the erection of two detached dwellinghouses in its car park to create 
a total of three dwellings along with associated works including parking, access, and 
gardens. 
 
Consultations 
The following consultees have raised objections to the application: 
 

 Harpole Parish Council; 

 Economic Development; 

 Local Highway Authority 
 

The following consultees have raised no objections to the application: 
 

 Building Control; 

 Northants Police Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 Environmental Health; 

 Archaeology; 

 Conservation. 
 

5 letters of objection have been received and 1 letter of support has been received. 2 further 
letters commenting on the proposal have also been received. 

Page 23



 
Conclusion  
The application has been assessed against the relevant policies in the NPPF, the adopted 
Local Plan and other relevant guidance as listed in detail at Section 8 of the report.  
 
The key issues arising from the application details are:  
 

 Principle of development; 

 Design and heritage; 

 Residential amenity; 

 Highway safety. 
 

The report looks into the key planning issues in detail, and Officers conclude that the 
proposal is acceptable subject to the conditions outlined in the recommendation at the end of 
this report. 

 
Members are advised that the above is a summary of the proposals and key issues 
contained in the main report below which provides full details of all consultation 
responses, planning policies, the Officer's assessment and recommendations, and 
Members are advised that this summary should be read in conjunction with the detailed 
report. 
 
 
MAIN REPORT  
 

1. APPLICATION SITE AND LOCALITY  
 
1.1 The application site comprises The Bull public house in Harpole as well as its car park. 

The Bull is a two-storey building with a typical village pub appearance that has been 
extended in various ways over the years. It is located towards the southern end of High 
Street in Harpole, near the junction with Park Lane. In total the pub and its car park 
extend to 0.17Ha. The principal part of the pub is understood to date back to 1901 and, 
whilst not listed, the building itself is considered a non-designated heritage asset and 
along with the wider site is located within the Harpole Conservation Area.   
 

1.2 The pub’s car park is located to the west of the building and runs parallel with the High 
Street. It is accessed on the junction with Park Lane and sits around 1.5m higher than 
the surrounding roads with a slight ramp at its entrance as well as steps down to the pub 
at its eastern end. Between the car park and the High Street is a grass bank fronted by 
a stone wall, which has various shrubs and small trees growing above it. The site is 
surrounded in all directions by residential properties. 

 

2. CONSTRAINTS 
 

2.1. The application site is within the village confines of Harpole and also within its 
Conservation Area. There is a Grade II listed building directly opposite on the High Street 
(Kingsley House) and two more listed buildings slightly further to the west (6 Park Lane 
and The Old Dairy, both also Grade II listed). The site is within 2km of 3no. Local Wildlife 
Sites. There are no other constraints affecting it. 
 
 

3. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 

3.1. The development is for the conversion of the existing pub building and the erection of 
two detached dwellinghouses within the current car park area. External alterations to the 

Page 24



existing pub building are relatively minimal, most significantly comprising the removal of 
certain modern extensions to the rear and side. Access to the converted pub (plot 1) will 
be via an existing access point on the north eastern boundary of the site, with parking 
and turning to the rear and the existing pub garden becoming the private outdoor area 
for plot 1.  
 

3.2. Plots 2 and 3 both comprise two-storey house-types of traditional appearance. They will 
be finished in ironstone with slate roofs and have four-bedrooms. Each plot is proposed 
to have its own access off High Street and Park Lane respectively, with double garages, 
in front of which will be two independently accessible parking spaces and space for 
additional parking/visitor parking behind and space to turn so that all cars can exit in a 
forward gear. They each have gardens to the rear as well as curtilage to their frontages 
that, whilst private, will serve a degree of purpose within the public realm as landscaping. 
 
 

4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 

4.1. The following planning history is considered relevant to the current proposal:  
 

Application Ref. Proposal Decision 

S/2021/0179/FUL Conversion of The Bull Public House and 
Demolition of Single Storey Side Extension 
to form residential dwelling. Development of 
Pub Carpark to provide Four Semi Detached 
houses and associated Garages/Parking 
and amenity Space 

Withdrawn 
03/03/2021 

 
 

4.2 The above application was withdrawn earlier this year after Officers raised significant 
concerns about the design and scale of the proposed dwellings. A full explanation of how 
the proposals have evolved will be presented at the committee meeting. 
 

4.3 The applicant also undertook pre-application advice in April 2020 under reference 
P/2020/0104/PRW. 

 
 

5. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY AND GUIDANCE 
 

Statutory Duty 
 

5.1. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
Development Plan 
 

5.2. The Development Plan comprises the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local 
Plan (Part 1) which was formally adopted by the Joint Strategic Planning Committee on 
15th December 2014 and which provides the strategic planning policy framework for the 
District to 2029, the adopted South Northamptonshire Local Plan (Part 2) and adopted 
Neighbourhood Plans.  The relevant planning policies of the statutory Development Plan 
are set out below: 
 
West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (LPP1) 
 

5.3. The relevant polices of the LPP1 are: 

Page 25



 

 SA – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  

 S1 – Distribution of Development  

 S10 – Sustainable Development Principles 

 RC2 – Community Needs 

 H1 – Housing Density and Mix and Type of Dwellings 

 BN5 – The Historic Environment and Landscape 

 R1 – Spatial Strategy for the Rural Areas 
 
South Northamptonshire Local Plan (Part 2) (LPP2) 
 

5.4. The relevant policies of the LPP2 are: 
 

 SS1 – The Settlement Hierarchy 

 SS2 – General Development and Design Principles 

 LH1 – Residential Development Inside and Outside Settlement Confines 

 INF2 – Community Facilities 

 HE1 – Significance of Heritage Assets 

 HE5 – Listed Buildings 

 HE6 – Conservation Areas 

 HE7 – Non-Designated Heritage Assets 
 
Harpole Neighbourhood Plan (HNP) 
 

5.5. The relevant policies of the (HNP) are: 
 

 H1 – New Housing in Harpole Village 

 H3 – Design Principles 

 H4 – Development within Harpole Conservation Area 

 H13 – Protection of Existing Community Facilities 
 

Material Considerations 
 

5.6. Below is a list of the relevant Material Planning Considerations 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

 District Design Guide 
 

6. RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION 
 

Below is a summary of the consultation responses received at the time of writing this 
report. Responses are available to view in full on the Council’s website, via the online 
Planning Register. 
 

Consultee Name Position Comment 

   

Harpole Parish 
Council 

Object The amended plans show improved 
access to Plot 4 (this should read as plot 3 
which has had an improved access), but 
have not addressed the other plots, with 
Plot 1 still having no visibility to the right. 
This area was seldom used for vehicles 

Page 26



and is clearly not suitable as a residential 
driveway. The Traffic Survey appears to 
be a cynical exercise carried out when 
there was little chance of traffic issues 
(especially during lockdown) and designed 
to support the limited visibility splays 
proposed. The Parish Council 
still objects to the significant loss of a 
valuable community asset which has been 
justified by the developer using a flawed 
Viability Report and a half-hearted 
marketing effort where offers were turned 
down with no attempt at negotiation. The 
Viability Report claims that the attractive, 
vibrant expanded village with a total 
population of approximately 1,600 is 
insufficient to support three pubs, but fails 
to take account of over 3,000 houses 
planned within the parish, with relatively 
few community facilities. 

Local Highway 
Authority 

Comment/Object Bull Public House conversion (1)  
The LHA notes the inclusion of the 
pedestrian visibility splays and lowering of 
the wall to a maximum of 0.6m; however 
after reviewing additional views of this 
access would be in a position of objection 
due to the severely reduced inter-vehicular 
visibility splays. The applicant will be 
required to re-configure their site layout to 
remove this issue; possibly looking at a 
shared access for plots 1 & 2 thus 
reducing the number of accesses off the 
highway.  
Plot A (2)  
The LHA notes and is in favour of the 
repositioning of the boundary wall to 
achieve the required vehicular visibility 
splays; this parcel of land will then become 
publicially maintained highway land and 
will need to be dedicated as such. Any 
planting of bushes or vegatation must be 
of a species that is no more than 0.6m 
when mature; this should be conditioned to 
ensure the required visibility is maintained 
.  
Plot B (3)  
Ther LHA notes the inclusion of pedestrian 
visibility splays; a turning space for 
vehicles and swept path analysis and has 
no further comments in relation to this plot. 

Economic 
Development 

Object Having reviewed the information presented 
in this application from an Economic 
Growth perspective, I can confirm that I 
object to this proposal, on the basis of 
the following:  

Page 27



 Reduces business growth and 

investment into the district. 

 Reduces local offering of commercial 

premises .  

 Reduces local employment 

opportunities 

 Does not allow for diversification of 

local business offer .  

 Given the current circumstances, it is 

also prudent to recognise the concerns 

expressed by CAMRA in the attached 

letter, outlining an appeal to local 

authorities to protect community 

facilities like pubs. Further evidence is 

requested for the original valuation of 

£350k for the site, and to show if other 

valuations were sourced. 

Building Control No objection  

Northants Police 
Crime Prevention 
Design Advisor 

No objection  

Environmental 
Health 

No objection Subject to conditions 

Archaeology No objection Subject to conditions 

Conservation 
 

No objection The revised elevational treatment better 
reflects the vernacular style of the area 
and are considered an improvement on 
the original submission. 

 

7. RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY 
 

Below is a summary of the third party and neighbour responses received at the time of 
writing this report.  

 
7.1. There have been 5 objections/letters of support raising the following comments: 

 

 Flaws in marketing; 

 Highway safety; 

 Residential amenity; 

 Positive design in the Conservation Area. 
 

7.2. Two further comments have been received supporting the principle of development in 
this location but proposing affordable housing instead. 
 

 

8. APPRAISAL  
 
Principle of Development 
 

8.1. The application site is within the settlement confines of Harpole and therefore, in 
principle, is a suitable location for residential development and is consistent in principle 

Page 28



with Policies S1 and R1 of the Joint Core Strategy, Policies SS1 and LH1 of the Part 2 
Local Plan, and Policy H1 of the Harpole Neighbourhood Plan. The creation of three new 
residential dwellings is also considered to be an appropriate scale of growth and will not 
be unsustainable in respect of the spatial strategy nor place undue strain on local 
infrastructure. It should also be noted that the site comprises previously developed land, 
the effective reuse of which is supported by chapter 11 of the NPPF as well as both the 
Local Plan and Joint Core Strategy. 

8.2. The fundamental consideration in assessing the principle of development instead rests 
on the loss of the existing public house. In planning policy terms, pubs are community 
facilities, not a commercial/employment use, and therefore their loss needs to be 
assessed against Policy RC2 of the Joint Core Strategy, Policy INF2 of the Part 2 Local 
Plan, and Policy H13 of the Harpole Neighbourhood Plan rather than the equivalent 
policies that apply to the loss of employment sites. The objection from the economic 
development team is therefore given very limited weight in the assessment below. 

8.3. Each of the relevant policies essentially have the same objective in ensuring that 
community facilities are only lost where they are demonstrably unviable, have been 
marketed without sufficient interest, or where alternative provision is made. The policies 
do, however, vary in their prescriptiveness, with the overall effect of each being 
summarised as follows: 

8.4. Whilst covering ‘Community Needs’, the wording of Policy RC2 of the JCS does not 
specifically mention pubs. It is instead mostly concerned with new provision and the 
protection of open spaces and sports facilities. It simply states that the loss of facilities 
will be resisted unless it can be demonstrated that there is evidence of provision of a 
replacement facility, or; the proposal will bring about community benefits outweighing the 
loss, or; if open space is surplus. It is considered to have limited weight in assessing the 
current proposal, bearing in mind the other policies below are more directly applicable.  

8.5. The relevant part of Policy INF2 of the Part 2 Local Plan is detailed verbatim below for 
clarity as it directly applies to the current proposal: 

4. Development proposing the change of use or loss of land or premises either currently 
or last used as a community facility will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated 
that:  

a. a replacement facility of equal or greater value is provided in the locality; or  

b. the use no longer serves the needs of the community in which it is located and the site 
or facility has marketed for an alternative community facility via a marketing exercise or 
such process agreed with the council; or  

c. the use is no longer financially viable and site or facility has marketed for an alternative 
community facility via a marketing exercise or such process agreed with the council. 

8.6. The inclusion of ‘or’ at the of each criteria under section 4 of the policy means that only 
one such circumstance needs to be demonstrated in order for the loss of the community 
facility to be acceptable. In this instance, criteria 4a regarding replacement facilities is 
not relevant. It should be noted that Policy LH1(1)(d) regarding development within 
settlement confines also requires development to not displace an existing viable use (of 
any kind). This criteria of Policy LH1 therefore works hand-in-hand with Policy INF2. 

8.7. Policy H13 of the Harpole Neighbourhood Plan specifically mentions The Bull public 
house and, similar to Policy INF2, explains that its loss will be resisted unless: 

Page 29



1. The proposal includes alternative provision, on a site within the locality, of equivalent 
or enhanced facilities. Such sites should be accessible by public transport, walking and 
cycling and have adequate car parking.  

2. Satisfactory evidence is produced that, over a minimum period of 12 months, it has 
been demonstrated that continued use as a community facility is no longer viable. 

8.8. It should be noted that the second criteria in Policy H13 effectively conflates criteria 4b 
and 4c of Policy INF2 but provides a specific period of 12 months that relates to the 
length of time marketing should take place.  

8.9. Due to this conflation, ‘viability’ needs to be more closely defined for the purpose of 
assessing the proposal. A pub may be considered to be viable but still not attract any 
marketing interest over a given period, in which case it would satisfy criteria 4b of Policy 
INF2 and its loss be acceptable. Conversely, it may be considered unviable, but still 
attract interest, including from those who may wish to use for an alternative community 
use, in which case it would not meet any criteria of Policy INF2 or H13. The purpose of 
this distinction is to demonstrate that marketing is the key determinant in either instance. 

8.10. In this case the applicant has carried out both a marketing exercise and a viability 
appraisal to seek to demonstrate, under the terms of Policy INF2, that the pub does not 
serve the needs of the community (i.e. there is no interest in it, thus passing criteria 4b) 
and in any case it is not a viable business (thus passing criteria 4c). The remainder of 
the assessment below considers whether this has indeed been demonstrated to the 
satisfaction of the relevant policies. 

8.11. The first question to consider is whether the marketing exercise itself was properly 
conducted. Concerns have been raised by several third parties that it was not carried out 
fairly and that the commercial agents for the proposal were obstructive or uncooperative 
with those enquiring about the pub. Officers have no evidence other than the anecdotal 
to substantiate this but, nevertheless, it is clear that a marketing exercise of some 
description was indeed carried out over the period prescribed by Policy H13 (from 
October 2019 to November 2020). Interest was received, including on scheduled visiting 
days, and is recorded in the marketing statement submitted by the applicant. This 
demonstrates that the marketing exercise cannot have been wholly ineffective. 
Therefore, whilst recognising comments about the difficulties in engaging with the 
agents, Officers have no substantive evidence that it was so flawed as to be 
fundamentally unreliable. 

8.12. In terms of the specific methods deployed, independent advice has been sought from 
Bruton Knowles, who have reviewed all the documentation submitted with the application 
concerning marketing and viability. A written report is awaited but based on verbal advice 
their opinion is that the marketing could have feasibly included advertising in a wider 
variety of locations, including on RightMove Commercial website and the Estates 
Gazette Property Link website. The marketing exercise was instead focussed on 
billboards around the site, advertisements in the Northampton Chronicle and in the 
Estates Gazette magazine, and circulation to parties on the agent’s own database. 
Having considered this matter carefully, Officers consider that the marketing methods 
chosen still adequately meet the objectives of the policy. The viability exercise 
accompanying the marketing report has also been reviewed and found to be generally 
sound. Therefore, given the viability issues it identifies, there is only limited likelihood of 
serious interest being shown in the pub if it was advertised on a wider-than-local basis. 
In respect of an alternative community facility, interest in these would almost certainly 
have come from the local marketing methods used, as educational, health and cultural 
facilities as well as places of worship etc are all typically brought forward by local groups 
and generally not run on a commercial basis in any case.  There is also nothing in policy 

Page 30



or supplementary guidance that requires applicants to use specific marketing outlets. 
Taking all of these matters in account alongside the verbal advice received from Bruton 
Knowles, Officers conclude that on balance the marketing exercise was conducted 
satisfactorily enough to meet with policy requirements even if it was not totally 
exhaustive. 

8.13. The second question to consider is whether any offers that were received demonstrate 
the site is still capable of fulfilling community needs. Of the offers received for the pub, 
the majority were for redevelopment purposes rather than as a community facility. 
However, one offer was in fact received, which is recorded in the marketing statement 
as being for an Indian restaurant, which would not be regarded as a community facility 
in policy terms. Nevertheless, it has since been confirmed with both the applicant and 
individual in question that the offer was in fact made on the basis of continuing the pub 
use albeit with an additional food element. Therefore it needs to be considered whether 
this one offer is sufficient to demonstrate that the site could still fulfil the needs of the 
local community and is viable. 

8.14. The offer itself was for £300,000, some 14% beneath the asking price of £350,000. The 
independent advice taken from Bruton Knowles confirms the asking price was 
reasonable and that the viability exercise provided by the applicant is sound. It should 
also be noted that in addition to the independent advice obtained by Officers, the original 
valuation by the applicant to inform the marketing exercise was agreed by two other 
reputable commercial agents.  

8.15. The marketing exercise was expressly carried out on an ‘offers in excess of’ and ‘best 
and final’ basis. In this context, Officers do not consider that the one offer received can 
be relied upon to demonstrate a definite inconsistency with either Policy INF2 or the 
Local Plan or Policy H13 of the Neighbourhood Plan, as it was well beneath a reasonable 
asking price. This judgement is nevertheless finely balanced and made without any 
useful precedent. Policy INF2 has not been applied in this manner since the adoption of 
the Local Plan and, as a general observation, it is uncommon for marketing exercises to 
result in Local Planning Authorities having to make such specific financial judgements. 

8.16. The counterargument is that the offer could have been negotiated and revised upwards 
to be closer to the asking price. However, there is again no policy basis for expecting a 
marketing exercise to include further negotiation if an asking price is not realised. The 
pub was expressly marketed on a best-and-final offer basis and, furthermore, it is 
understood that the offer received came towards the end of the 12 month marketing 
period thus limiting the prospects of negotiation. Had there been multiple early offers 
below asking price then it would seem more reasonable to expect further negotiation to 
ensure the best possible offer was realised but, in the circumstances that have arisen, 
the applicant has done what they are expected to do by policy. In the opinion of Officers 
it would therefore be difficult to sustain an objection to a lack of negotiation should a 
refusal on this basis be appealed. This is particularly true given the Council would be 
highly reliant on the evidence of one third party on the matter, who would not be obligated 
to participate in appeal proceedings and whose interest in the site could fall away for any 
number of reasons outside the Council’s control. 

8.17. There are other material considerations weighing both for and against the conclusion 
that the marketing exercise and its outcome do not conflict with policy. Firstly, the 
marketing spanned the introduction of the COVID-19 pandemic restrictions, which quite 
feasibly may have limited its effectiveness and resulted in interest in the site being 
underestimated. Secondly, Harpole is served by two other public houses and so, 
relatively speaking, the loss of its third pub would not prejudice community needs to the 
same extent as the loss of a sole pub in a village would do. Officers attribute moderate 
negative weight and moderate positive weight respectively to each of these two material 

Page 31



considerations. The result is that they collectively have a neutral effect on the overall 
planning balance.  

8.18. The policy assessment carried out above therefore remains unaltered by material 
considerations. The overall assessment against the Development Plan remains finely 
balanced given the specific and detailed judgements that are required to be made in 
respect of both the marketing exercise itself and its outcomes. However, overall, Officers 
conclude that the proposal does not represent a definite departure from the relevant 
policies and therefore the application is acceptable in principle. 

Design and Heritage Impact 

8.19. The site is within a Conservation Area and is within the setting of Grade II listed buildings 
(Kingsley House lies directly opposite the site on High Street with 6 Park Lane and The 
Old Dairy slightly further to the west). The pub building itself is also considered a non-
designated heritage asset. 

8.20. Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as 
amended) states that in carrying out its functions as the Local Planning Authority in 
respect of development in a conservation area: special attention shall be paid to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  

8.21. Likewise Section 66 of the same Act states that: In considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning 
authority…shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its 
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
Therefore significant weight must be given to these matters in the assessment of this 
planning application. 

8.22. Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings are designated heritage assets, and Paragraph 
193 of the NPPF states that: when considering the impact of a proposed development 
on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the 
asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should 
be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total 
loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. Policy BN5 of the JCS 2014 echoes 
this guidance. 

8.23. Policies HE1, HE5 and HE6 of the Part 2 LP guide development affecting designated 
and non-designated heritage assets and their settings including conservation areas and 
listed buildings. Policy HE2 covers Scheduled Ancient Monuments and Archaeology, 
Policy HE3 Historic Parks and Gardens, and Policy HE7 Non-Designated Heritage 
Assets. 

8.24. The proposal has undergone extensive revisions during the course of this application as 
well as amendments from a previously withdrawn application and also pre-application 
discussions held last year. These will be presented fully to the committee as part of the 
Officer presentation but may be summarised as follows: 

 Originally at pre-application stage the proposals included the demolition of the 

pub and its replacement with a new-build dwelling. It also included dwellings with 

dormer windows at roof level; 

 The withdrawn application included the conversion of the pub but proposed 4 

semi-detached dwellings on the car park, which were not considered to represent 

an appropriate form or design of development; 

Page 32



 During the course of the current application the dwellings have been amended 

from a hipped roof to a traditional pitched roof with gables. Other amendments to 

materials, windows, and architectural detailing have also been secured. 

8.25. Officers are now satisfied that the proposals represent the best form of development of 
the site if it is considered acceptable in principle. This is borne out by revised responses 
from the Conservation Officer raising no objection and other consultees recognising the 
better form of design. The development is considered to enhance the Conservation Area 
through the retention of the non-designated heritage asset of the pub building itself and 
by replacing the existing car park (which is of no visual merit or value to the significance 
of the Conservation Area) with two high-quality traditional dwellings. In particular, the use 
of ironstone on the external walls is a positive feature with the manner in which plot 3 
addresses the corner of Park Lane and High Street allowing a good level of appreciation 
of this vernacular architectural style. 

8.26. In respect of the setting of the nearby listed buildings, this will be largely mitigated 
through the same means as the Conservation Area; i.e. by using a complementary 
traditional style of dwelling as opposed to a more modern form that would detract from 
the historic significance of the building. Nevertheless, the change in levels between the 
site and Kingsley House in particular and the fact that the latter is of relatively low height 
means that there is the potential for the new dwellings to be overbearing. However, no 
objection from the Conservation Officer has been raised on these grounds and the 
separation distances provided by High Street are such that this matter can be resolved 
by way of a condition requiring confirmation of the finished floor levels of the dwellings. 

8.27. Subject to this condition and other standard conditions concerning material samples, 
detailing, landscaping etc., the proposed development is considered to be acceptable in 
terms of design and heritage and therefore complies with Policies SS2, HE5, HE6, HE7 
of the Local Plan, Policy BN5 of the Joint Core Strategy, and Policy H4 of the Harpole 
Neighbourhood Plan.  

Residential amenity 

8.28. Policy SS2 of the Part 2 Local Plan requires a good standard of amenity for existing and 
future residents with matters such as garden sizes also specified in the Design Guide, 
with a minimum depth of 9m recommended. 

8.29. The proposed dwellings will be neighboured by existing properties in almost every 
direction and concerns have been raised by consultees about how the proposals would 
affect residential amenity. 

8.30. This principally affects the central of the three plots that will result from the development. 
Plot 1 (the converted pub) will retain largely the same relationship with surrounding 
properties as currently exists, particularly as the existing pub garden in the south-east 
corner of the site will be fully reused as a domestic garden instead. Plot 3 at the other 
end of the site is orientated in such a way so as to present a conventional side-to-side 
relationship with no.3 Park Lane. Plot 2 in the middle though will present a rear-to-garden 
relationship that needs to be carefully considered. 

8.31. The garden depth for plot 2 is around 10.1 metres, which exceeds the minimum Design 
Guide requirements whilst not reaching the recommended depth of 11 metres. 
Nevertheless this is considered acceptable as the rear elevation of the dwelling will face 
the garden of no. 3 Park Lane rather than any habitable elevation. A separation distance 
over 10m is therefore acceptable and will not result in significant overlooking that would 
justify refusal on amenity grounds. The dwelling is also limited to two storeys, meaning 

Page 33



there is no opportunity for overlooking from higher upper floors to occur. The matter will 
be further controlled by a condition requiring finished floor levels to be provided. 

8.32. The garden depth of plot 3 tapers from around 4m nearest to the High Street to over 11m 
at its southern corner nearest no.3 Park Lane. This is nevertheless considered to 
represent an appropriate amount of outdoor space for this dwelling, with a rear-to-side 
relationship with Plot 2 of over 13m also exceeding the Design Guide expectations of 
12m. 

8.33. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in respect of residential amenity. 

Highway safety 

8.34. Policy SS2 of the Part 2 Local Plan requires a safe and suitable means of access for all 
people to be secured in development proposals. Paragraph 111 of the NPPF advises 
that development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there 
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts 
on the road network would be severe. Policies H1 and H3 of the Harpole Neighbourhood 
Plan each also require safe vehicular access in new developments. 

8.35. The proposals have undergone several revisions to overcome original highway 
concerns, particularly in respect of the proximity of plot 3’s access to the junction with 
Park Lane and High Street. The applicant has also conducted speed surveys to justify 
the provision of 37m visibility splays for the new access proposed for plot 2. Ordinarily 
43m would be expected on a 30mph road, and can be achieved in a westwards direction 
from the proposed access, although the applicant’s survey indicates that average speeds 
(or, more accurately, the 85th percentile) are such that the eastwards visibility splay need 
only be 32m in order to be safe. The Local Highway Authority agree with the findings for 
plot 2 and raise no objection to this plot either. 

8.36. Plot 1 (the converted pub building) remains the subject of an outstanding objection from 
the Local Highway Authority that has not been resolved. This concerns the use of a 
secondary access to the side of the pub building. Photographs of the access will be 
presented to the committee where it will be apparent that the length of eastwards visibility 
is restricted by a wall that forms the boundary with the neighbouring property and is 
outside of the redline boundary for the application. 

8.37. The road is a 30mph road and surveys carried out to support shorter splays for plot 2 
indicate that average speeds are slightly lower than this. However, the eastwards splays 
for plot 1 are negligible and will require a vehicle exiting the access to almost fully enter 
the highway before oncoming traffic can be seen. The applicant has provided a risk 
assessment that categorises risks as low due to the slow speed of the road and identifies 
the risk as no greater than would be the case if the pub continued to be accessed in the 
same location. They also proposed as further mitigation the installation of a mirror directly 
opposite the site on a telegraph pole. 

8.38. The use of mirrors to achieve visibility is not acceptable to the Local Highway Authority 
due to the manner in which perspective can be distorted and the fact that weather, debris 
and general age can affect their performance. However, having considered this matter 
carefully, Officers are of the opinion that a reason for refusal on highway safety grounds 
could not be sustained at appeal due to the fact that the access already exists and could 
be reinstated for use associated with the pub at any time. Evidence from the Parish 
Council suggests that the access was only used intermittently but having consulted 
historic aerial imagery of the site, there appears to have been a vehicle consistently 
parked in this location. Furthermore, it should be noted that the proposed development 
will arguably represent a betterment to the existing situation at this access point as 

Page 34



vehicles will be able to enter the driveway of plot 1 and turn within plot 1 and therefore 
exit in a forward gear. Previously the use of this access only allowed vehicles to pull into 
the parking space and reverse to leave the site.  

8.39. Therefore, whilst the proposed development is not consistent with the relevant policies 
concerning highway safety, there are material considerations that justify a departure, 
namely the fallback position that the existing access could be reused at any time, as well 
as the fact that the proposals will provide an improvement in highway safety terms by 
offering suitable turning space within the site that does not currently exist. 

 

9. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

9.1. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will be payable on the proposed development. The 
CIL is a set charge that must be paid if planning permission is granted for a new house 
(or houses) or for a home extension or retail development of over 100 sqm. The CIL 
helps to fund a range of infrastructure that is needed as a result of new development 
(e.g. road schemes, schools and community facilities). Reliefs and exemptions are 
available. 
 

9.2. This development, if approved, is liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy as set 
out in the West Northamptonshire Council Charging Schedule for the South 
Northamptonshire Area.  
 

9.3. For further information relating to CIL please visit: 
http://www.southnorthants.gov.uk/7143.htm). 
 

9.4. No planning obligations from the site towards local infrastructure can be sought under a 
section 106 agreement as the proposal is not major development. 

 

10. PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 
 

10.1. The benefits of the proposed development may be summarised as: 
 

 The provision of three dwellings on a previously-developed site within the 

settlement confines of a Secondary Village (Category B) that, on balance, has 

been demonstrated to no longer viably fulfil community needs, particularly 

considering the presence of other pubs in the village; 

 

 A positive design that will preserve and enhance the significance of Harpole 

Conservation Area and the non-designated heritage asset of the pub building. 

10.2. Matters weighing against the proposal may summarised as: 
 

 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the marketing methods deployed, and a below-

asking-price offer being received without further negotiation, the ability of the site 

to viably fulfil community needs cannot be categorically ruled out and is an ‘on 

balance’ judgement only; 

 

 The proposed access arrangements for plot 1 will result in the continuation of a 

substandard access. 

Page 35

http://www.southnorthants.gov.uk/7143.htm


10.3. In conclusion, the development is considered acceptable in principle when assessed 
against the relevant Development Plan policies, with a departure on highway safety 
grounds justified by material considerations. Therefore, as per paragraph 12 of the 
NPPF, it is recommended permission is granted. 
 

 

11. RECOMMENDATION 
 

RECOMMENDATION – DELEGATE TO THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – GROWTH, 
CLIMATE AND REGENERATION TO GRANT PERMISSION, SUBJECT TO THE 
CONDITIONS SET OUT BELOW (AND ANY AMENDMENTS TO THOSE 
CONDITIONS AS DEEMED NECESSARY) 

 
 TIME LIMITS AND GENERAL IMPLEMENTATION CONDITIONS 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason : To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance with 

the approved plans and details unless a non-material or minor material amendment 
is approved by the Local Planning Authority under the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).  The 
approved plans and details are:   

  
 Site Location Plan (drawing ref: DE(9)900), received 17th March 2021 
 Proposed Site Plan (drawing ref: DP(9)900 rev D), received 2nd June 2021 
 Proposed Pub Plans (drawing ref: DP(0)003 rev A), received 17th March 2021 
 Proposed Pub Elevations (drawing ref: DP(0)052 rev A), received 17th March 2021 
 Plot 2 Proposed Plans (drawing ref: DP(0)001), received 17th March 2021 
 Plot 2 Proposed Elevations (drawing ref: DP(0)050 rev A), received 2nd June 2021 
 Plot 3 Proposed Plans (drawing ref: DP(0)002 rev A), received 20th July 2021 
 Plot 3 Proposed Elevations (drawing ref: DP(0)051 rev B), received 20th July 2021 
 Proposed Double Garage Plans/Elevations (drawing ref: DP(0)010), received 2nd 

June 2021 
  
  
 Reason : To clarify the permission and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
 CONDITIONS REQUIRING LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY WRITTEN APPROVAL 

OR TO BE COMPLIED WITH BEFORE ANY DEVELOPMENT COMMENCES  
 
3. No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 

of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the 
Planning Authority. 

  
 This written scheme will include the following components, completion of each of 

which will trigger the phased discharging of the condition: 
  
 (i) fieldwork in accordance with the agreed written scheme of investigation; 
 (ii) post-excavation assessment (to be submitted within six months of the completion 

Page 36



of fieldwork, unless otherwise agreed in advance with the Planning Authority); 
 (iii) completion of post-excavation analysis, preparation of site archive ready for 

deposition at a store (Northamptonshire ARC) approved by the Planning Authority, 
completion of an archive report, and submission of a publication report to be 
completed within two years of the completion of fieldwork, unless otherwise agreed in 
advance with the Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that features of archaeological interest are properly examined and 

recorded and the results made available, in accordance with NPPF Paragraph 205. 
 
4. Based on the findings of the Phase I Desktop Assessment submitted with the 

application, no part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until: 
   
 (a) a comprehensive intrusive investigation in order to characterise the type, nature 

and extent of contamination present has been carried out; 
 (b) the risks to receptors and to inform the remediation strategy proposals has been 

documented as a report undertaken by a competent person and in accordance with 
DEFRA and the Environment Agency's ‘Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination, CLR 11’ and   

 (c) both (a) and (b) above has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

  
 No development shall take place unless the Local Planning Authority has given its 

written approval that it is satisfied that the risk from contamination has been 
adequately characterised as required by this condition. 

   
 Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately addressed 

to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is 
suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Policy SS2 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan, Policy BN9 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is 
required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the 
acceptability of the scheme. 

 
5. If contamination is found by undertaking the work carried out under condition 4, then 

no development hereby permitted shall take place until  
 (a) a scheme of remediation and/or monitoring to ensure the site is suitable for its 

proposed use has been prepared by a competent person and in accordance with 
DEFRA and the Environment Agency's ‘Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination, CLR 11’ and  

 (b) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
  
 No development shall take place until the Local Planning Authority has given its 

written approval of the scheme of remediation and/or monitoring required by this 
condition. 

   
 Reason:  To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately 

addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure 
the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Policy SS2 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan, Policy BN9 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is 
required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the 
acceptability of the scheme. 

 
6. No development shall take place until details of all finished floor levels in relation to 

Page 37



existing and proposed site levels and to the adjacent buildings and garden levels have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
levels. 

  
 Reason : In order to safeguard the residential amenity of occupiers and the visual 

amenities of the area (including the Conservation Area and setting of the nearby 
Listed Building) in accordance with Policies SS2 and HE5 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan (Part 2) and advice within Section 12 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework.  

 
 CONDITIONS REQUIRING LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY WRITTEN APPROVAL 

OR TO BE COMPLIED WITH BY DEVELOPER BEFORE SPECIFIC 
CONSTRUCTION WORKS TAKE PLACE 

 
7. A method statement for enhancing biodiversity shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any development above slab level. 
Thereafter, the biodiversity enhancement measures approved shall be carried out 
prior to occupation and retained in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss 

or damage in accordance Policy BN2 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy and Government guidance contained within Section 15 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
8. Samples of the slates to be used in the covering of the roof of the dwellings, including 

ridge tiles, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of those works.  The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the samples so approved. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that the materials are appropriate to the appearance of the locality 

(including the Conservation Area) and to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the 
completed development in accordance with Policies SS2 and HE5 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan Policy and Government guidance contained within the 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
9. The external walls of the dwellings and the garages of plots 2 and 3 shall be 

constructed in natural ironstone which shall be laid, dressed, coursed and pointed 
using a lime based mortar with brushed or rubbed joints in accordance with a sample 
panel (minimum 1 metre squared in size) which shall be constructed on site to be 
inspected and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the 
stonework is commenced.  The sample panel shall be constructed in a position that 
is protected and readily accessible for viewing in good natural daylight from a distance 
of 3 metres. The panel shall be retained on site for the duration of the construction 
contract. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that the materials are appropriate to the appearance of the locality 

(including the Conservation Area) and to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the 
completed development in accordance with Policies SS2 and HE5 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan Policy and Government guidance contained within the 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
10. A scheme for landscaping the site shall be provided to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority which shall include:- 
  

Page 38



 (a) details of the proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, 
sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas and written 
specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and 
grass establishment i.e. depth of topsoil, mulch etc), 

  
 (b) details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be 

felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow 
and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any 
excavation, 

  
 (c)  details of the hard landscaping including hard surface areas, pavements, 

pedestrian areas and steps. 
  
 Such details shall be provided prior to the development progressing above slab level 

or such alternative time frame as agreed in writing by the developer and the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented by the end of the first 
planting season following occupation of the development. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that a satisfactory landscape scheme is provided in the interest 

of well planned development and visual amenity and to preserve the setting of the 
nearby Listed Building, in accordance with Policies SS2 and HE5 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan and Government guidance contained within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
11. Before any above ground works commence a scheme for the provision and 

implementation of foul and surface water drainage shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage works shall be constructed 
and completed in accordance with the approved plans before the first occupation of 
the dwelling hereby approved. 

  
 Reason : To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in the interests of achieving 

sustainable development, public health, to avoid flooding of adjacent land and 
property to comply with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan Policy 
BN7 and BN9 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy and Government 
advice in the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
12. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, further details of the 

architectural detailing of the exterior of plots 2 and 3, including the windows and doors 
(and their surrounds), together with the eaves and verge treatment shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to construction above 
slab level.  The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 Reason : In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area and Conservation Area 

in accordance with Policies SS2 and HE6 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan 
 
13. Full details of the siting, appearance and colour of any electricity or gas supply 

meter housings to be located on the external elevations of the buildings shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the construction of 
the building above slab level.  The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details 

  
 Reason :  In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area and Conservation 

Area in accordance with Policies SS2 and HE6 of the South Northamptonshire Local 
Plan  

Page 39



  
 
14. Details of the construction, including cross sections, cill, lintel, reveal and colour 

/ finish of the proposed windows, which shall be of a timber construction, to a scale of 
not less than  1:10 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of that work. The development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason : In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area and Conservation Area 

in accordance with Policies SS2 and HE6 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan 
 
 CONDITIONS REQUIRING LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY WRITTEN APPROVAL 

OR TO BE COMPLIED WITH BY DEVELOPER BEFORE OCCUPATION  
 
15. If remedial works have been identified in condition 5, the development shall not 

be occupied until the remedial works have been carried out in accordance with the 
scheme approved under condition 5. A verification report that demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

   
 Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately addressed 

to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is 
suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Policy SS2 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan, Policy BN9 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
16. The proposed access and parking facilities shall be provided in accordance with 

the approved plans before first occupation of the development hereby permitted. 
  
 Reason : In the interests of highway safety, to ensure the provision of adequate off-

street car parking and turning to comply with Policy SS2 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan and Government guidance in Section 12 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework.  

 
17. The dwellings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until they have been 

provided with electric charging equipment of AC Level 2 (or equipment providing for 
no lesser standard of efficiency) to serve that dwelling. 

  
 Reason : To comply with Policy S10 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 

Strategy and Policy INF4 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan Part 2, and to 
maximise opportunities for sustainable transport modes in accordance with paragraph 
110 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
18. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping 

shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation 
of the building(s) and shall be maintained for a period of 5 years from the completion 
of the development. Any trees and/or shrubs which within a period of five years from 
the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size 
and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent for any 
variation. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that the agreed landscaping scheme is maintained over a 

reasonable period that will permit its establishment in the interests of visual amenity 
and to accord with Policies SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan and 

Page 40



Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH AT ALL TIMES  
 
19. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town 

and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or 
any order revoking or re-enacting or amending that order) no building or structure 
shall be erected or placed within the curtilage of the dwellings hereby permitted 
without the prior planning permission of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason : To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain planning control over the 

development of this site in order to safeguard the character and appearance of the 
area in accordance with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan. 

 
20. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class A of Part 2, Schedule 2 of the Town 

and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or 
any order revoking or re-enacting or amending that order) no gate, fence, wall or other 
means of enclosure shall be erected, constructed or placed in front of the front wall of 
any dwelling and the highway, at any time, without the prior express planning 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason : In order to retain the open character of the development and area in 

accordance with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan. 
 
21. Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A-D (inc) of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of 

the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any order revoking or re-enacting or amending that order) no enlargement, 
alteration or improvement of the dwellings shall be undertaken at any time without the 
prior planning permission of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason : Taking into account the density of the site it is considered to be in the public 

interest to ensure the merits of future proposals can be assessed by the Local 
Planning Authority so that the amenities of the adjoining occupier(s) are not adversely 
affected in accordance with Policy SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan and 
Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
22. All rainwater gutters and downpipes, etc shall be cast iron or aluminium 

manufacture and painted black unless alternative details are otherwise first approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that the new works are sympathetic with the character of the 

surrounding area and to accord with Policies SS2 of the South Northamptonshire 
Local Plan.   

 
23. No construction work including site clearance and delivery of materials shall be 

carried out except between the hours of 07.30 to 18.00 Monday to Friday and 08.00 
to 13.00 on Saturdays and at no times on Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays. 

  
 Reason : In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties from noise 

outside normal working hours and to comply with Policy SS2 of the South 
Northamptonshire Local Plan. 

 
24. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 

present at the site, no further development shall be carried out until full details of a 
remediation strategy detailing how the unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with 

Page 41



has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter the remediation strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is identified and 

adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and 
to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Policy SS2 of the 
South Northamptonshire Local Plan, Policy BN9 of the West Northamptonshire Joint 
Core and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
25. All species used in the planting proposals associated with the development 

shall be native species of UK provenance. 
  
 Reason : To conserve and enhance biodiversity and prevent the spread of non-native 

species in accordance with Policy BN2 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy and Government guidance contained within Section 15 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Page 42



Application Number:

Parish:

Town\Village:

Site Area:  

Grid Location:

Map Scale: 1:1250

WNS/2021/0724/FUL

Brackley CP

El Sub Sta

47

37

108

2

142

7

2

14

126

11
19

23

11

15

JOHN CLARE CLOSE

1

20

6

35

1

11

120

41

15

26

17

51

1

32

RILEY CLOSE

19

22

31

30

15

4

14

128

5

24

1010

Brackley

0.0422 Ha

SP 58905 38461

©  C rown  Copyrigh t. A ll righ ts  and  da tabase  righ ts  reserved . 
W est Northamp tonsh ire  Counc il 100063706  2021

Site

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number:

Parish:

WNS/2021/0724/FUL

Brackley CP

Map Scale: 1:1250

Date Flown: 'Latest Available' 

©  Copyrigh t B luesky W orld  In terna tiona l L td  2021

Site
Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Number: WNS/2021/0724/FUL 
 

Location:  35 John Clare Close, Brackley, NN13 5GG 
 

Proposal:  Single Storey Rear Extension 
 

 

Applicant:   Mr and Mrs A Bagot-Webb    
 
Agent:   Cadmonkies              
 

Case Officer:  Hannah Hayward  
 

 

Ward:    Brackley   
     

 
Reason for Referral:  Elected Councillor  
 
Committee Date:  05/08/2021    
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 
 
Proposal  
Single storey rear extension to replace existing conservatory and bay window. 
 
Consultations 
The following consultees have raised objections to the application: 

 None received 

The following consultees have raised no objections to the application: 

 Brackley Town Council 
 

The following consultees are in support of the application: 

 None received 

0 letters of objection have been received and 0 letters of support have been received. 
 
Conclusion  
The application has been assessed against the relevant policies in the NPPF, the adopted 
Local Plan and other relevant guidance as listed in detail at Section 8 of the report.  
 
The key issues arising from the application details are:  

 Principle of Development 

 Design and Impact on Character of Area 

 Residential Amenity 

 Highway Safety 
 

The report looks into the key planning issues in detail, and Officers conclude that the 

Page 47



proposal is acceptable subject to conditions.  
 

Members are advised that the above is a summary of the proposals and key issues 
contained in the main report below which provides full details of all consultation 
responses, planning policies, the Officer's assessment and recommendations, and 
Members are advised that this summary should be read in conjunction with the detailed 
report. 
 
 
MAIN REPORT  
 

1. APPLICATION SITE AND LOCALITY  
 
1.1 The application site is a two-storey detached property located on a corner plot on John 

Clare Close, with the rear elevation partially viewable from the street scene. The property 
is constructed of red brick with brick lintel detailing above the windows. The existing 
boundaries consist of wooden fencing between the neighbouring properties to the west 
and south and a red brick wall along the east boundary adjacent to the road. There are 
various examples of rear extensions and conservatories on properties located on John 
Clare Close. 
 

 

2. CONSTRAINTS 
 

SWFL - Low Risk of Surface Water Flooding - Distance: 0 
AC4 - Aerodrome Consults, Height Consultation: 90m Obstacles - Distance: 0 

SGW - Technical Site Safeguarding Map for Wind Turbine Developments (all wind turbine 

applications must be forwarded to NATS for consultations, irrespective of size and location) - 

Distance: 0 

LWSB - Local Wildlife Site - Within 2km buffer, Name: Fox Covert (Whitfield), Site ID: S327 - 

Distance: 0 

LWSB - Local Wildlife Site - Within 2km buffer, Name: Brackley Railway Embankment, Site 

ID: S392 - Distance: 0 

LWSB - Local Wildlife Site - Within 2km buffer, Name: Brackley Disused Railway (West), Site 

ID: S396 - Distance: 0 

CIL - CIL Charging Zones, Name: Urban Zone Brackley, Charge: 50 pounds - Distance: 0 

 

3. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 

3.1 The application seeks planning permission for a single storey rear extension to replace 
the existing conservatory and bay window. The rear extension has a maximum 
projection of 4 metres from the original dwelling and a pitched roof reaching a height of 
3.4 metres, with the eaves at a height of 2.55 metres. 

 
 

4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 

4.1. The following planning history is considered relevant to the current proposal:  
 

Page 48



 

Application Ref. Proposal Decision 

S/1994/0307/PO Residential Development (Outline) Approval 

S/1994/0586/P Erection of 78 Two Storey Dwellings Approval 

S/1996/0665/P Substitution of House Types Approval 

 
  

 

5. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY AND GUIDANCE 
 
Statutory Duty 
 

5.1. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 
 
Development Plan 
 

5.2. The Development Plan comprises the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local 
Plan (Part 1) which was formally adopted by the Joint Strategic Planning Committee on 
15th December 2014 and which provides the strategic planning policy framework for the 
District to 2029, the adopted South Northamptonshire Local Plan (Part 2) and adopted 
Neighbourhood Plans.  The relevant planning policies of the statutory Development Plan 
are set out below: 
 
West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (LPP1) 
 

5.3. The relevant polices of the LPP1 are: 
 

 SA – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  

 S1 – Distribution of Development  

 S10 – Sustainable Development Principles 
 
South Northamptonshire Local Plan (Part 2) (LPP2) 
 

5.4. The relevant policies of the LPP2 are: 

 SS2 – General Development and Design Principles 

 SDP1 – Residential Extensions and Upward Extensions 
 
 

Material Considerations 
 

5.5. Below is a list of the relevant Material Planning Considerations 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

 Supplementary Planning Guidance – South Northamptonshire Design Guide 
 

 

6. RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION 
 

Page 49



The one consultation response received at the time of writing this report was from 
Brackley Town Council who had no objections to the proposed development.  
 

7. RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY 
 

There were no third party or neighbour responses received at the time of writing this 
report.  
 

 

8. APPRAISAL  
 
Principle of Development 
 

8.1. Policies SS2 and SDP1 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan Part 2 allows for 
extensions to residential properties, subject to ensuring the proposal is in keeping with 
the host property as well as the character of the area and that it doesn’t adversely affect 
the amenities of neighbouring properties.  

8.2. As such the proposed rear extension on the property is acceptable in principle, the 
property is located within the development confines of Brackley. The proposed extension 
will cause no further adverse impacts on the character or appearance of the existing 
property. Furthermore, it will not result in harmful impacts on the amenities of any 
adjacent residential. Further assessment of these are set out below. 

Design and Impact on Character of Area 

8.3. Policy SDP1 requires extensions to respect the scale and character of the existing 
dwelling and adjacent properties. The design of the proposed rear extension is in keeping 
with that of the original property and the materials proposed will be in keeping with that 
seen on the original property. The proposed extension is subservient in scale to the 
existing dwelling, as it is single storey and has a modest footprint. 

8.4. Although the proposed rear extension will be viewable from the street scene, it will use 
materials to match the existing dwelling, and therefore will cause no adverse impacts on 
the character of the property or the surrounding area.  

8.5. It should also be noted that the proposed extension’s projection as measured from the 
original properties rear elevation is 4 metres and, as the property is detached, the 
proposed extension would be classed as Permitted Development (PD) under Schedule 
2, Part 1, Class A. 

Impact on Residential Amenity 

8.6. The proposed extension will not cause any further impact to neighbouring properties. 
The rear extension follows guidance from the South Northamptonshire Design Guide 
and has taken into consideration the outlook of the nearest habitable window on the 
neighbouring property to the west. The proposed extension will replace the existing 
conservatory and have a reduced projection by 1 metre. Furthermore, there are no 
habitable windows located on the property to the north that will be adversely impacted 
by the proposed development. Therefore, there will be no adverse impact to in terms of 
outlook or privacy of neighbouring properties. 

9. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

9.1. The application is not CIL Liable as the floorspace created will be less than 100sqm. 
 

Page 50



10. PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 
 

10.1. The proposal complies with the relevant Development Plan policies and guidance listed 
in Section 8 of this report, and so is considered to be acceptable in principle. There are 
no further material considerations that dictate otherwise, and so permission should 
therefore be granted. 

 

11. RECOMMENDATION / CONDITIONS AND REASONS 
 
11.1. RECOMMENDATION – DELEGATE TO THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – GROWTH, 

CLIMATE AND REGENERATION TO GRANT PERMISSION, SUBJECT TO THE 
CONDITIONS SET OUT BELOW (AND ANY AMENDMENTS TO THOSE 
CONDITIONS AS DEEMED NECESSARY) 

 
 

Recommendation :  
 
Conditions, Reasons and Informatives 
 
 CONDITIONS:- 
 
 TIME LIMITS AND GENERAL IMPLEMENTATION CONDITIONS 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason : To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance 

with the approved plans and details unless a non-material or minor material 
amendment is approved by the Local Planning Authority under the Town and 
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
(as amended).  The approved plans and details are:   

 Proposed Plans (drawing no. P/21/170/003 C) as received by the Planning 
Authority 22.07.2021. 

  
 Reason : To clarify the permission and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
 MATERIALS, FINISHES AND DESIGN 
 
3. The materials to be used for the external walls and roof of the development 

hereby permitted shall match in terms of colour, type and texture those used on 
the existing building. 

  
 Reason : To ensure that the development is constructed and finished in materials 

which are in harmony with the materials used on the existing building and to 
comply with Policies SS2 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan and 
Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	 Planning Applications
	5 46-48 High Street, Harpole, Northamptonshire, NN7 4BS
	WNS.2021.0209.FUL - Aerial Plan
	WNS.2021.0209.FUL - Committee Report

	6 35 John Clare Close, Brackley, NN13 5GG
	WNS.2021.0724.FUL - Aerial Plan
	WNS.2021.0724.FUL - Committee Report


